[bookmark: _GoBack]DGP 2011 QUESTIONS FROM POTENTIAL APPLICANTS


1. Is it acceptable to submit more than one concept paper? If the answer is yes, is there any limitation as to which sub components they can cover: Climate change adaptation, Water and Microenterprise.

There is no official restriction, but USAID Macedonia recommends that each organization submits no more than one concept paper per category.

2. Is the reference list (background) of the organisational capabilities/capacities required in the first phase – submission of the concept paper?

Yes. As attachments to the concept paper the applicant should provide description of previous development experience, organizational history and organizational chart.  (RFA p.34. Section 4.B.c. 2-4)

3. Are the organisations, which already use grants from this programme, eligible to apply for this call as well?

Yes, if the total funding already provided directly from USAID does not exceed $5 million over past 5 years. (RFA p. 29. Section 3. A.3.)

4. What is the maximum duration of the project implementation? Is it possible to prepare a project for more than 2 years (5 years for example)?

Period of performance should be up to 5 years. (RFA p.8 Section 1. DGP Funding) 

5. Regarding the cost share, is it possible to cover the in-kind costs by another donor’s organisation?

Yes, but not from another US Government agency or USAID intermediary (RFA p.42 Section 5.3.11).

6. Is it possible for one organization to be a non-key partner in several concept papers and a leader organization in one concept?

Yes.

7. Can an NGO apply as a prime applicant with a partner NGO in one priority and at the same time to be a partner NGO in another priority?

For example:

Priority SMEs

	Prime applicant     
	Partner

	Rural Dev. Net.
	AkRRa



Priority Water

	Prime applicant     
	Partner

	AkRRa
	Rural Dev. Net.



Yes.

8. Is there any form we can use while drafting the concept paper, besides the instructions found in the RFA?

No.

9. We would like to know if a project dedicated to strengthening of a marginalized group, based on the social enterprise model for self-sustainability and development of business opportunities would be eligible for this RFA? 

This would be an example of social entrepreneurship.  You should also be able to show how this would support USAID Macedonia goals, objectives, and or sector priorities. (RFP p.35. Section 4.C.3)
 
10. With reference to the document: Country Specific Instructions, part for Macedonia, section Microenterprise Productivity there is this text written: 

 Microenterprise Productivity: activities that will be supported under the future Regional Small Business Project, which will be determined in 2011 and 2012. Proposals related to workforce development and social entrepreneurship ideas that fit within the areas described in this RFA are also of interest. 
I would like to kindly ask you which are the foreseen planned activities and what kind of regional small business project will be determined? This is in order to check if planned activities within the project proposal we are preparing are in line with above mentioned Regional Project.

More specific guidance on this was provided in the Announcement letter issue by USAID Macedonia to all interested applicants. It reads as follows:

Microenterprise Productivity: activities that contribute toward local economic development, strengthening sustainable business support organizations that provide sophisticated business development services, integration of microenterprises into specific value chains and usage of technology and innovation to enhance the performance of the microenterprises. Proposals related to workforce development and social entrepreneurship ideas that fit within the areas described in this RFA are also of interest.

11. Is there an application that needs to be filled out?

No.

12. Is there an official application template for the concept paper including budget template?

No. Sample budget format was provided at the clarification meeting on Friday, April 18 and is available on the USAID Macedonia web site http://macedonia.usaid.gov/en/grants.html.

13. Is the Concept Paper in fact a Business Plan with complete calculations or a summary of the project?

Concept paper is not a business plan (this is not an investment in a business), but a project proposal.

14. Is it necessary to submit pro forma invoices related to offers as evidence of financial viability of the project?   

No.

15. Does the project (proposal) need to be in English? 

Yes.

16. Should the project proposal be submitted by e-mail or directly on April 25, 2011?

The concept paper should be submitted both by e-mail to DGPmacedonia2011@usaid.gov (cc: DGP3@usaid.gov) with subject line: Concept paper for DGP-3, submitted to USAID Macedonia by ??? and in 3 paper copies to USAID/Macedonia, Economic Growth Office, U.S. Embassy, Samoilova 21, 1000 Skopje, Macedonia. Additionally, if you want you can upload the application on grants.gov (this is not mandatory). The new deadline for submission of concept papers is Monday, May 9, 2011 at 17:00.

17. Can we apply as Macedonian Chambers of Commerce, or can any of our sectorial chambers apply since we are registered as different legal entities?

Both the Macedonian Chambers of Commerce and the sectorial chambers can apply if they have a formal legal status as non-governmental, non-profit organization, managed by a governing body formed mostly of citizens. (RFA p.29 Section 3.A.2)

18. Our institution is interested to apply at the open call of USAID on DGP. We will be very thankful if you share the documentation with us. 

All relevant documentation is available at on www.grants.gov  at http://www07.grants.gov/search/search.do;jsessionid=cWCFNQzc7RR12Q925LnhvPBHhw6z788hPN8xTMwXvWvvvtdT7rQz!1777957990?oppId=78733&mode=VIEW

19. We would like to apply for a grant with your organization. Please send us more details, forms, and addresses where we can apply as well as the date for the Clarification Meeting. Furthermore, we would like to ask you to send us the link of the full Request for Application, since we cannot find it online.

All relevant documentation is available at on www.grants.gov  at http://www07.grants.gov/search/search.do;jsessionid=cWCFNQzc7RR12Q925LnhvPBHhw6z788hPN8xTMwXvWvvvtdT7rQz!1777957990?oppId=78733&mode=VIEW

20. Is there a preferred budget format for the concept paper?  Should the budget include the budget with the DGP funding only, or also include the cost-shares.

The budget should include cost share elements as well. Sample budget format was provided at the clarification meeting on Friday, April 18 and is available on the USAID Macedonia web site http://macedonia.usaid.gov/en/grants.html.

21. Our ListenRead phonetically
22.  Municipality recently a letter informing us of a "Development Grants Program" (Number M-OAA-GRO-EGAS-DGP-11-0001). I would like to review the Request for Application (RFA) associated with this grant. Unfortunately, I was unable to open the hype-text link provided in your letter of March 25, 2011.  I would be most appreciative if you would provide me with the link that will allow me to review the full description of this program as found in the RFA.

You can find the RFA on www.grants.gov  at http://www07.grants.gov/search/search.do;jsessionid=cWCFNQzc7RR12Q925LnhvPBHhw6z788hPN8xTMwXvWvvvtdT7rQz!1777957990?oppId=78733&mode=VIEW and click Full Announcement at the top. You can also search grants.gov by the keyword "DGP" to find the announcement and other supporting documents. 

23. Are agricultural cooperatives eligible to apply for a DGP grant? Agricultural cooperative is a non-profit organization registered according to the law on cooperatives (official gazette 54/02).

To our knowledge agricultural cooperatives are registered as for profit organizations and thus are not eligible to apply for a DGP grant. If you are indeed registered as a non-profit organization please provide proof of your legal status as attachment to the concept paper.

24. Cost Share – Can in kind contributions from Municipalities or LEDs be considered as part of the cost share? Can local or international University cost shares be considered?

Yes.

25. Letters for Cost-share support – What should the letters confirming the cost-share from partners cover?  Can they be a letter of collaboration with general information on what the collaboration could look like if the grant was provided, as opposed to detailed commitments?  Should the letter be directed to the applicant organization or to USAID? 

If the cost share provided by these partners is counted toward the 10% contribution, than the letters of commitment should be as specific as possible. These letters should be addressed to the applicant.

26. Statement of USAID assistance – Can you clarify whether the statement of USAID assistance should include only cash-grants/contracts, or should it also include in-kind assistance via a USAID projects (e.g. cost-sharing staff costs, office costs, etc).

It should include only financial assistance from USAID – grants and contracts.

27. Governing Body – The RFA says that an NGO must has a governing body to be qualified.  Is there a ‘qualified’ form of a governing body that is needed, or will a governing body that meets local laws be sufficient?   For example, the RFA mentions “board of directors,” which our NGOs don’t have, since it is not obligatory according to Macedonian law.  

There is no “qualified” form of governing body prescribed in the RFA. Governing bodies that meet local laws are sufficient. During the pre-award survey the reviewers will look at the composition of the board to ensure that it has sufficient external representation, i.e. not composed only of the employees of the organization and their relatives. 

28. NGO Documents – The RFA requests documentation on the establishment of the NGO (legal by- law and court decision from the central registry). The documents are in Macedonian.  Must they be translated and the translation notarized for the concept paper? 

Yes, these documents must be translated in English. Notarization is not mandatory at this stage.

29. Staffing Roles and Responsibilities – While it asks for staffing roles and responsibilities, the RFA does not specifically ask for names of proposed staff or their CVs.  Can you confirm what is needed at this stage in the process?

Names and CVs of potential staff members are not mandatory at this stage, just the needed positions to implement the project and position descriptions. However, if you already know the key project personnel, you can include it in the attachments as well.

30. Appendixes – Should the appendixes be sent as part of the Concept Paper, or part of a separate document?

Appendices do not count against the six page limit, so include appendices as separate attachments.  

31. NGOs from the southwest region are eligible for the DGP Sector 2 Microenterprise

Yes.

32. Is The Chamber of Crafts of the Republic of Macedonia (CCRM) eligible to apply for the Development Grants Program 2011? 

Yes.

33. Regarding point 2 over Microenterprise, we would like to know if the DGP supports trainings in order to boost capacity? More precisely, does the DGP support trainings on CCRM's and its members' (the regional chambers of crafts) capacity boosting, (since we consider that a continuous set of workshops and trainings is required for capacity improvement)?

Yes.

34. Does the DGP program provide for supporting material-technical resources (equipment for the regional chambers of crafts' offices in order a grid network of the chamber system and improved administration to be established, due to the fact that CCRM is already well equipped, but the regional chambers are not)?

Yes.

35. Does the DGP program provide for supporting standardization and improvement of the vocational education and training and obtaining Standard Certificates, which shall result in quality improvement of the products and services, provided by the craftsmen?

Yes. Workforce development activities can fall under improving microenterprise productivity sub element. 

36. Are only NGO's applicable for grants or individuals / entrepreneurs may apply and submit their ideas and plans as well?
Only non-governmental organizations can apply. This grant opportunity is not targeted at individuals or companies.

37. Also, we've heard that the stopgap budget for the rest of 2011 trims foreign aid through USAID and its predicted to be even greater in the 2012 budget. How much money really available for 2011-2012?

We can’t comment on USAID’s overall budgets, but USAID/Washington has budgeted $54 million for the DGP program this year.  

38. What are USAID's MK funding priorities?

Please visit our web site for this information: macedonia.usaid.gov.

39. Does USAID have any "standout" microenterprise projects in other countries that might be used as a model for replication in MK?  Where can we find information about such projects?

Information on USAID projects throughout the world is available at Development Experience Clearinghouse (http://dec.usaid.gov).

40. For USAID, what is an ideal range of created jobs for local constituents (outside of Skopje)? 10-50?   51-100?  101-300?  301+

Number of jobs created depends on the particular project proposal and on the budget requested.  While we cannot give a general rule of thumb, two winning proposals last year plan to create approximately 250 jobs each with between $1.4 million and $2.0 million, but it really depends on the proposed approach.   

41. Where can we find a listing of the preferred funding activities for microenterprise grants (Section K.2 pp 20-25)?  (The USAID "Full Announcement" description for RFA Number M-OAA-GRO-EGAS-DGP-11-0001 is not working on the USAID website )

More specific guidance on this was provided in the Announcement letter issue by USAID Macedonia to all interested applicants. It reads as follows:

Microenterprise Productivity: activities that contribute toward local economic development, strengthening sustainable business support organizations that provide sophisticated business development services, integration of microenterprises into specific value chains and usage of technology and innovation to enhance the performance of the microenterprises. Proposals related to workforce development and social entrepreneurship ideas that fit within the areas described in this RFA are also of interest.
42. Where can we find the USAID regional mission and objectives? We extensively search through the USAID web but without success. 

There is no regional mission here. The USAID Macedonia objectives related to the Development Grants Program were discussed at the Clarification Meeting on April 18, 2011 and are as follows:

· Climate Change Adaptation: Improved energy business enabling environment, establishment of low emission development processes, and investment in clean energy technology
· Microenterprise: Job Creating Private Sector Growth 
· Water: Improved farmer productivity in supported value chains (fresh and processed fruits and vegetables, and wine) 

43. How will partnership influence to concept note?

It is an integral part of the project and will be one of the evaluation criteria.

44. Since the grant itself is up to 2.000.000 USD does it mean that total program costs can be more that 2.000.000 USD?

Yes. Total program cost including the contribution from the applicant and other partner organizations can exceed $2 million, but USAID portion can be only up to $2 million.

45. Is it acceptable organization’s contribution to be only in-kind contribution?

Yes, if it realistically adds up to 10% of the total project cost (for international organizations applying cost share should be 15% of the total project cost)

46. Which rate is acceptable regarding the calculation of indirect costs and on which base?

There is no predefined rate for indirect cost. The applicant should propose a rate and elaborate on the methodology. Please note that the indirect rate is subject to financial audit for projects of over $300,000 per year.  At the clarification meeting the representative of the Regional Contracting office encouraged applicants rather than putting an indirect cost line item in the budget, to include the expenses such as office rent, utilities, communication, management fees, etc. as direct costs with the appropriate percentage allocated to this project. 

47. How to deliver concept note if we prefer to submit hard copy.  The given deadline fall in non-working day?

The deadline for concept papers is moved to May 9, 2011 at 17:00. Hard copies can be delivered by mail or hand delivered to the mailing address in the RFA: USAID/Macedonia, Economic Growth Office, U.S. Embassy, Samoilova 21, 1000 Skopje, Macedonia. Please note that concept paper submissions should be both by e-mail and in three hard copies. 

48. If we want to send application via e-mail should we scan annexes with the signature or we have to send hard copy by regular mail?

Complete concept papers including annexes must be submitte4d both by e-mail and in three hard copies.

49.  Is there a minimal budget for the projects? 

No.

50. How precise should the budget be?

We strongly encourage applicants to develop a detailed budget even in the concept paper stage, so that they are fairly confident in the amount that they are requesting. The requested total budget in the concept paper cannot change drastically when the full application is submitted (if requested), however shifting funding from one line item to other is allowed. 

51. Does the project have to cover a whole region of Macedonia?

No. The project activities do not have to cover a full geographical region.

52. Are the other implementing partners eligible for capacity building activities as well as the applicant? Can sub-grantees include a budget line item for capacity building?

Yes. 

53. Will preaward surveys be conducted on the sub-awardees?

No. Only the prime implementer is subject to preaward survey. 

54. Can the implementer sub-contract consulting companies and individuals?

Yes. 

55. Can Universities and other public institutions (such as municipalities) contribute to the cost share?

Yes.

56. How will USAID Macedonia evaluate concept papers that overlap with existing USAID funded projects?

USAID Macedonia is looking for project proposals that will be complementary and build upon the achievements and activities of ongoing USAID projects. However, innovative ideas that are not closely aligned with what USAID is already doing, but contributes to the overall objective will also be seriously considered.

57. Are new NGOs allowed to apply?

All NGOs meeting the eligibility criteria are allowed to submit a concept paper regardless of when they were established. All NGOs have to demonstrate that they possess the organizational and technical capacity to implement the proposed project.

58. Can loan capital be an allowable project expense? Can financial institutions present their existing loan capital as cost –share?

Yes. Loan Capital can be an allowable project expense. USAID retains the right to withdraw the loan capital after end of the project. Existing loan capital of the financial institutions can be presented as cost share if it will be used for the purposes of the project.

59. Is a project targeting only women acceptable?

Yes. The applicant should elaborate in the concept paper why this target population was chosen.

60. Can the applicant pay employees of public institutions and university professors through this project?

Public employees and professors cannot be paid to perform duties that are already part of their government job. They can be hired through the project as consultants to perform tasks that are not part of their job description in the public institution, and which will be performed in their private time (after hours or while on leave) and in their private capacity (not representing the institution that they came from). Employers’ approval is a good practice in this case.
